
 

NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

Your attendance is requested at a meeting to be held in the 
 

The Guildhall, St. Giles Square, Northampton, NN1 1DE. 
 

on Monday, 15 June 2015 
 

at 6:00 pm. 
 

D Kennedy 
Chief Executive  

AGENDA 

 
1. APOLOGIES    

Please contact Democratic Services on 01604 837722 or 
democraticservices@northampton.gov.uk when submitting 
apologies for absence.  

 

  
1. MINUTES    
  
3. DEPUTATIONS / PUBLIC ADDRESSES    
  
4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
  
5. MATTERS OF URGENCY WHICH BY REASON OF 

SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES THE CHAIR IS OF THE 
OPINION SHOULD BE CONSIDERED   

 

  
(A) INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE - DRAFT ANNUAL 

REPORT   
C Dickens, Internal 
Auditor 
(PWC) 

(Copy to follow)  
 

(B) LGSS INTERNAL AUDIT: ASSURANCE OPINIONS 
ON KEY FINANCIAL SYSTEMS 2014/15   

P Clarke 
Group Auditor, LGSS 

(Copy herewith)  
 
7. EXTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE   N Bellamy, External 

Auditor 
(Audit Commission) 

Verbal update.   



Public Participation 
Members of the public may address the Committee on any non-procedural matter listed on this agenda.  
Addresses shall not last longer than three minutes.  Committee members may then ask questions of the 
speaker.  No prior notice is required prior to the commencement of the meeting of a request to address the 
Committee. 

 

 
  
8. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS    

THE CHAIR TO MOVE: 
“THAT THE PUBLIC AND PRESS BE EXCLUDED FROM THE 
REMAINDER OF THE MEETING ON THE GROUNDS THAT 
THERE IS LIKELY TO BE DISCLOSURE TO THEM OF SUCH 
CATEGORIES OF EXEMPT INFORMATION AS DEFINED BY 
SECTION 100(1) OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS 
LISTED AGAINST SUCH ITEMS OF BUSINESS BY 
REFERENCE TO THE APPROPRIATE PARAGRAPH OF 
SCHEDULE 12A TO SUCH ACT.”  

 

  
SUPPLEMENTARY AGENDA 
 
Exempted Under Schedule, 12A of L.Govt Act 1972, Para No: -   

 

  



1 
Audit Committee Minutes – Monda y16 March 2015 

 

NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 16 March 2015 
 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Larratt (Chair); Councillor Hibbert (Deputy Chair); Councillors 

Nunn and Strachan.  Councillor Marriot as substitute for Councillor 
Palethorpe. 

 
1. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Councillor Flavell. 
  
 

2. MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 12th January 2015 were agreed as a true record save 
for the amendment of item 9 paragraph 3, amended to:- 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Strachan, Glenn Hammons confirmed that the 
£40,000 security costs were due to extra security at the Bus Station.  He confirmed that he 
would get a more detailed cost of the breakdown to Councillor Strachan. 
  
 

3. PROGRESS REPORT 

It was confirmed that there were no outstanding actions. 
  
 

4. DEPUTATIONS / PUBLIC ADDRESSES 

There were none. 
  
 

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were none. 
  
 

6. MATTERS OF URGENCY WHICH BY REASON OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES 
THE CHAIR IS OF THE OPINION SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 

There were none. 
  
 

7. TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 

Councillor Larratt welcomed Daniel Haywood from KPMG to his first meeting. 
 
P. Morrison presented the report and elaborated thereon.  He confirmed that the interest on 
the new and replacement borrowing was a £211k gross saving on new long term borrowing.  
There also was a £211k saving due to the higher rate of interest earned on higher levels of 
cash balances compared to forecast. 
 
Compliance with agreed policies and practices had been monitored during the year and to 
date there were no breaches.  

1

Agenda Item 2



2 
Audit Committee Minutes – Monda y16 March 2015 

 

 
Councillor Larratt confirmed that they have achieved a significant higher interest rate than 
average.  He offered his congratulations to everyone in achieving that. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Marriott, the Borough Secretary confirmed that the 
Section 151 Officer would lead the way forward following discussions with the Management 
Board and the Risk management for the Football Club loans would be reviewed. 
  
 

8. FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT 

It was confirmed that there were no outstanding actions. 
 
RESOLVED:   That the report be noted. 
  
 

9. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Eyles of LGSS addressed the Committee and confirmed that it was good policy for the 
Committee to approve the report each year before the Statement of Accounts was 
produced.  There was no impact for the Council but the accounts would be progressed, 
reviewed and changes made if appropriate.  The final accounts would be published in 
September along with any with any updates to Accounting policies. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Marriott, A. Eyles confirmed that nationally Local 
Authorities were subject to the same CIPFA Code for Local Authority Accounting. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the report be approved. 
  
 

10. EXTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE 

D. Haywood from KPMG presented the report to Committee and confirmed in the key 
financial statement of the Audit Plan that there was one key risk identified  at present which 
is the initial risk of preparing Group Accounts for the first time with the introduction of 
Northamptonshire Partnership Homes.  At the moment it was undecided whether it would be 
consolidated or not but there would be a report to Committee in September.  The initial 
assessment presented no significant risks at this stage.  The fee this year would be slightly 
higher than normal due to the  changes around NNDR certification. The audit would start at 
the end of June. 
 
As in previous years work was required for auditing the whole of Government Accounts.  
The next main Audit document would be in September with the presentation of the ISA260 
Report and then the Annual Audit Letter in November. 
 
In response to Councillor Strachan’s question, the Borough Secretary confirmed that the 
2013/14 accounts Abington Street objection was still being discussed but a meeting would 
be scheduled shortly.  The objection had been made to the external auditors and they 
needed to manage the process but it was in hand. 
 
Resolved:  That the report be noted. 
  
 

11. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE 

K. Mulhearn from PWC presented the report and advised that progress continued with the 
delivery of the plan but there were concerns on the availability of evidence.  There were 

2



3 
Audit Committee Minutes – Monda y16 March 2015 

 

changes to the plan for the Committee to note which was the removal of the Housing 
Review now with Northampton Partnership Homes. 
 
The financial delivery was a key piece of work and the approval process with Agresso was 
time consuming to audit but the aim was to complete it by the end of the month.  The S151 
review services had started this week and the Environmental Services review had already 
started but the work required the output of delegations as they were linked. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Strachan, Councillor Larratt confirmed that the 
recycling credit budget issues needed to be raised at a future meeting and any implications 
reviewed. 
 
K. Mulhearn confirmed that they had some difficulties obtaining information for assurance 
purposes from the two organisation i.e. NBC and LGSS because of the nature of the Shared 
Service and that this had caused some delays. Councillor Larratt asked whether this could 
be resolved as simply as PWC obtaining reports from Agresso. K Mulhern confirmed that 
that could be done. 
 
The Borough Secretary confirmed that his restructure, once implemented, would help with 
this.  
 
Resolved: That the report be noted. 
  
 

The meeting concluded at 18.50 
 

3



 
 

By the public sector, for the public sector 
 

   
        

 

LGSS Audit & Risk Management Service  
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Internal Audit Report 
Assurance Opinions on Key Financial 

Systems 2014/15 
 

4

Agenda Item 6b



 
 

By the public sector, for the public sector 
 

   
        

Assurance Opinions on Key Financial 
Systems 2014/15 

 
Many financial activities transferred from Northampton Borough Council to LGSS 
during the 2013/14 financial year.  It was agreed with the S151 Officer and the 
council’s internal auditors (PwC) that where LGSS have the responsibility to undertake 
the functions, LGSS Internal Audit would complete the assurance work relating to 
LGSS functions, whilst PwC would continue to audit those aspects which remain in the 
direct control of the council. This approach was used in 2013/14 and has been 
repeated for 2014/15. We have worked with PwC to plan and undertake our work to 
enable us to provide the assurance opinions, whilst minimising duplication of work.   
 
We have now finalised our work to provide these 3rd party assurances to 
Northampton Borough Council on the controls in key financial systems now operated 
by LGSS.  This report sets out the results.  The assurance levels are based upon the 
definitions in Table 1. 
 
Table 1. Assurance Level Definitions 

Assurance Definition 

Full Assurance 
 

There is a sound system of control designed to 
address the relevant risks with controls being 
consistently applied. 
 

Substantial Assurance 
 

There is a sound system of control, designed to 
address the relevant risks, but there is evidence of 
non-compliance with some of the controls. 
 

Moderate Assurance Whilst there is a basically a sound system of control, 
designed to address the relevant risks, there are 
weaknesses in the system, that leaves some risks not 
addressed and there is evidence of non-compliance 
with some of the controls. 
 

Limited Assurance 
 

The system of control is weak and there is evidence 
of non-compliance with the controls that do exist 
which may result in the relevant risks not being 
managed. 
 

No Assurance 
 

There is no system of internal control.  Risks are not 
being managed. 
 

 

5



 
 

By the public sector, for the public sector 
 

   
        

For systems where we were able to give substantial assurance in 2013/14 we agreed 
an approach which walked through the system controls to verify whether or not  they 
continued to operate in 2014/15 and followed up the previous recommendations to 
verify that appropriate actions had been taken.  The results of the audits are 
summarised in the Table 2.  We are pleased to report that we are able to give 
“substantial” or “full” overall assurances on all of the systems we have reviewed.  
 
Table 2 Overall Assurance Opinions  

Auditable Area Assurance Opinion 

 
Accounts Receivable 
 
Accounts Payable 
 

 
Substantial 
 
Substantial 

General Ledger  
 
Payroll  
 

Bank Reconciliation 
 

Fixed Assets 
 
Treasury Management 
 

Substantial 
 

Substantial 
 

Full 
 

Full 
 

Substantial 
 

 

The detailed assurance statements for each auditable area are set out in Appendix A.  
These set out the process areas included in each review and the assurance opinion on 
each process, leading to the overall opinions set out above.  For each process area 
where the assurance is less than “Full” we have agreed an agreed action plan of 
improvements for implementation by LGSS.  These actions will be monitored and 
followed up, utilising our automated audit management processes.    
 
 
 

6



 
 

By the public sector, for the public sector 
 

   
        

APPENDIX A 
 

Northampton Borough Council (NBC) 
Third Party Assurance – Accounts Receivable 2014/15 
 
The table below provides a breakdown of the levels of assurance given for each of the process 
areas identified, based upon testing of LGSS systems and processes: 
 

Process Area Assurance opinion 
(Please see Appendix 1 for definitions) 

Set up of New Customers Substantial 

Amendments to Customer Accounts  Substantial 

Direct Debit set up; payment run and rejected / 
cancelled of direct debits  

Full 

Raising Invoices Full 

Receipt of Payments  Substantial 

Credit Notes / Cancellation of invoices  Full 

Debt Recovery and Write off  Substantial 

All control account balances are identified.  Control 
account balances are reviewed and cleared on a 
regular basis.  

Substantial 

User Access  Substantial 

Overall Level of Assurance Substantial 

 

Where testing and systems reviews have identified areas requiring further 
improvements these have been discussed with LGSS management and suitable 
actions have been agreed. 
 
Details of findings and assurance opinions 
 
Set up of New Customers – Substantial Assurance 
Customer creation is an Agresso Self Service function and therefore any NBC 
employee can commence the process of setting up a new customer account.  
However, prior to the customer being available for selection, it requires approval 
from LGSS Exchequer.   

We walked through the ‘customer approval’ process and noted the following 
weakness: 

Once the customer set up process reaches the Approval stage on Agresso, a system 
generated reminder email is sent to the 3 LGSS Exchequer officers (i.e. their individual 
work email addresses) whose responsibility it is to carry out the relevant checks and 
approve the new customer.   

7



 
 

By the public sector, for the public sector 
 

   
        

It is our view that the system generated email as noted above should be sent to the 
Exchequer Team’s generic email address – NBC-exchequer@northamptonshire.gov.uk 
rather than to the 3 exchequer officers individual work email addresses.  There is a 
risk that if these officers are off work or leave their current employment, tasks may 
not be undertaken or may not be undertaken on a timely basis.  

In addition to the above and as part of the 2014/15 review, we also followed up on 
the implementation of recommendations raised during the 2013/14 review.  We are 
satisfied that all the recommendations raised during our previous review in this area, 
have been implemented and actioned.  
 
Amendments to Customer Accounts – Substantial Assurance 
Any NBC Agresso service user can submit a request to amend an existing customer 
account on Agresso.  The process commences with the service user submitting an 
online request via the LGSS Exchequer e-mail address and attaching an Accounts 
Receivable Amendment Form noting changes.  

We walked through the customer account amendment process and noted the 
following weakness.  

Some requests to make amendments to existing customer accounts were still being 
sent to a previously used email address i.e. 
finance&adminsupport@northampton.gov.uk  rather than to the new generic email 
address employed when NBC Exchequer joined LGSS.  Although the ‘old’ email 
address is accessed on occasions, it is understood the use of the old email address 
was discontinued in July 2013.   

In addition to the above and as part of the 2014/15 review, we followed up on the 
implementation of recommendations raised during the 2013/14 review.  We are 
satisfied that all the recommendations raised during our previous review in this area, 
have been implemented and actioned. 
 
Direct Debit – Full Assurance 
We walked through the customer direct debit set up process through to cash 
receipting including the cancellation and rejection of direct debits.  We can confirm 
that the controls covered in the 2013/14 review continue to operate in 2014/15.   
 
Raising Invoices – Full Assurance 
Any NBC employee that is required to raise sales requisitions as part of their duties, 
and has been set up on Agresso to do so, can raise a sales requisition.  Once the 
requisition has been approved by the line manager, a sales order is generated.  The 
order is processed through workflow requiring approval by LGSS Exchequer prior to 
becoming a sales invoice and then dispatched.   

We walked through the above process and confirmed that the controls covered in the 
2013/14 review continue to operate in 2014/15.   
 

8

mailto:NBC-exchequer@northamptonshire.gov.uk
mailto:finance&adminsupport@northampton.gov.uk


 
 

By the public sector, for the public sector 
 

   
        

Receipt of Payments – Substantial Assurance 
We walked through the ‘receipting payment’ process including batch receipting and 
the G4S collection of receipts for banking.  No weaknesses were identified:  

We can also confirm that all the recommendations raised during the 2013/14 review 
following weaknesses identified in this area, have been implemented and actioned.  
 
Credit Notes / Cancellation of invoices – Full Assurance 
Any NBC employee that is required to raise sales requisitions as part of their duties, 
and has been set up on Agresso to do so, can raise a sales requisition.  Only the officer 
who raised the sales requisition initially can raise a sales credit note.  When the credit 
note requisition is approved by the line manager, it is processed through workflow 
prior to LGSS Exchequer final check and approval.  

Our testing involved a walkthrough of the credit note process from the point of LGSS 
involvement and confirmed that the controls covered in the 2013/14 review continue 
to operate in 2014/15. 

  
Debt Recovery and Write off – Substantial Assurance 
We walked through the debt recovery and write off processes and confirmed that the 
controls covered in the 2013/14 review continue to operate in 2014/15. 

No weaknesses were identified. 
 
All control account balances are identified.  Control account balances are reviewed 
and cleared on a regular basis – Substantial Assurance 

We walked through the control account processes ensuring that all control accounts 
balances are investigated and cleared on a monthly basis.  We can confirm that the 
controls covered in the 2013/14 review continue to operate in 2014/15. 

Notwithstanding the above, we identified 3 control accounts, GG170 (Unidentified 
Income); GG171 (Unallocated Income) and GG172 (Write Off Unpresented Refunds) 
which contained old / uncleared balances dating back many years.   

The Exchequer Team Leader indicated that all control account balances are reviewed, 
investigated and in most cases cleared on a daily basis.  However, despite all efforts 
by the team to do so, some accounts do contain balances that remain uncleared.     

A process to clear old entries needs to be established in consultation with finance 
colleagues.  
 
User Access – Substantial Assurance 
We walked through the user access process ensuring that access responsibilities were 
allocated to appropriate officers.  No weaknesses were identified. 

In addition to the above, we can also confirm that all the recommendations raised 
during the 2013/14 review in this area, have been implemented and actioned.   

9



 
 

By the public sector, for the public sector 
 

   
        

Northampton Borough Council (NBC) 
Third Party Assurance – Accounts Payable 2014/15 
 
The table below provides a breakdown of the levels of assurance given for each of the process 
areas identified, based upon testing of LGSS systems and processes: 
 

Process Area Assurance opinion 
(Please see Appendix 1 for definitions) 

Supplier Setup and Amendments  Substantial 

Requisition Creation and Approval  Substantial 

Goods Receipt Processing  Full 

Invoice Processing Substantial 

Payment Run  Substantial 

Management Reporting Substantial 

User Access Substantial 

Overall Level of Assurance Substantial 

 
Where testing and systems reviews have identified areas requiring further improvements 
these have been discussed with LGSS management and suitable actions have been agreed. 
 
Details of findings and assurance opinions 
 
Supplier Setup and Amendments – Substantial Assurance 
We walked through the supplier set up and amendment processes included authorisation 
arrangements and concluded that there are appropriate processes and controls in place for 
both these functions.  

Further to the above, all the recommendations raised following our previous review in 
2013/14 have been implemented and actioned.   
 
Requisition Creation and Approval – Substantial Assurance 
We walked through the requisition creation and approval processes and noted that there are 
appropriate processes and controls in place for both these functions. 

We can confirm that the process in 2014/15 has been tested and is unchanged from the 
previous year – 2013/14.  

 
Goods Receipt Processing – Substantial Assurance 
We walked through the goods receipt process with LGSS involvement limited to user access 
responsibilities.  The process in 2014/15 has been tested and is unchanged from the previous 
year – 2013/14.    
 
Invoice Processing – Substantial Assurance 
We walked through the invoice processing function and conclude that there are appropriate 
processes and controls in place over this function.  The process in 2014/15 has been tested 
and is unchanged from the previous year – 2013/14.  
 
 

10



 
 

By the public sector, for the public sector 
 

   
        

Payment Run – Substantial Assurance 
We walked through the BACS and Cheque payment run processes and concluded that there 
are appropriate processes and controls in place over both these functions.  

Further to the above, all the recommendations raised following our previous review in 
2013/14 following weaknesses identified in this area have been implemented and actioned. 
 
Management Reporting – Substantial Assurance 
We walked through the management reporting function and conclude that there are 
appropriate processes and controls in place over this function.  The process in 2014/15 has 
been tested and is unchanged from the previous year – 2013/14. 
 
User Access – Substantial Assurance 
We walked through the User Access responsibility function and concluded that there are 
appropriate processes and controls in place over this process.  

Further to the above, all the recommendations raised following our previous review in 
2013/14 following weaknesses identified in this area have been implemented and actioned.      
 
 

11



 
 

By the public sector, for the public sector 
 

   
        

Northampton Borough Council (NBC) 
Third Party Assurance – LGSS General Ledger (GL) 2014/15 
 
The table below provides a breakdown of the levels of assurance given for each of the process 
areas identified, based upon testing of LGSS systems and processes: 
 

Process Area Assurance opinion 
(Please see Appendix 1 for definitions) 

Access to GL Substantial 

Journals / Virements Full 

General Control Environment Full 

Coding Structure Full 

Feeder Systems Full 

Access and Data Security Substantial 

Reconciliations Moderate 

VAT Full 

Overall Level of Assurance Substantial 

 
Where testing and systems reviews have identified areas requiring further improvements 
these will be discussed with LGSS management and suitable actions will be agreed. 
 
Details of findings and assurance opinions 
 
Access to GL – Substantial Assurance 
We walked through the GL access process and noted that the following weakness: 

A periodic report of officers who have access to GL functionalities are produced and 
reviewed by the system owner.  This report is sent to the key team leaders on a 
monthly basis for checking and review.  A review of the February 2015 email sent to 
Finance identified the following issue: 

 A monthly email together with a User Access Report is sent from Systems to HR, 
Payroll and Finance for review to ensure access rights remain the same or has 
not changed.  Although the recipients of the email (in this instance only) were 
aware what was required of them, there were no instructions on the email 
specifying what the requirements were.  If the current team leader leaves their 
current employment or a new team leader is appointed, existing tasks may not 
be undertaken.   

In addition to the above and as part of the 2014/15 review, we also followed up on 
the implementation of recommendations raised during the 2013/14 review.  We are 
satisfied that all the recommendations raised during our previous review in this area 
have been implemented and actioned. 
 
 
 
 

12



 
 

By the public sector, for the public sector 
 

   
        

Journals / Virements - Full Assurance 
We walked through the Journal / Virement process including the authorisation 
arrangements.  No issues have been identified.  We can therefore confirm that the 
controls covered in the 2013/14 review continue to operate in 2014/15. 
 
General Control Environment - Full Assurance 
We walked through the GL general control environment process including the 
timetable for key maintenance tasks.  No issues have been identified.  We can 
therefore confirm that the controls covered in the 2013/14 review continue to 
operate in 2014/15. 
 

Coding Structure - Full Assurance 
We walked through the GL general coding structure.  No issues have been identified.  
We can therefore confirm that the controls covered in the 2013/14 review continue 
to operate in 2014/15. 
 

Feeder Systems - Full Assurance 
We walked through the process when data is submitted to Agresso via the feeder 
systems and the processing controls that exist to ensure that all information 
submitted is correct and complete.  Our testing showed that control totals were 
produced and reconciled and no issues have been identified.  We can therefore 
confirm that the controls covered in the 2013/14 review continue to operate in 
2014/15. 
 
Access and Data Security - Substantial Assurance 
We walked through the GL access and data security processes and noted the 
following weaknesses.   

 LGSS hold and process personal data on behalf of NBC.  We are unclear whether 
the processing of this information by LGSS / NCC will be covered under its 
umbrella registration with the ICO.   

 An approved list of employees allowed to authorise amendments / edit 
requests to Agresso is not maintained.  

 
Reconciliations – Moderate Assurance 
The Assistant Accountant (Systems) is responsible for monitoring the two GL suspense 
accounts and both accounts are reviewed and cleared on a timely basis.   
 
Regarding the Accounts Payable (AP), Accounts Receivable (AR) and Payroll reconciliations to 
GL, the following weakness was identified: 

 Both the AP and AR reconciliations to the GL had not been undertaken for 2014/15.  The 
system Team Leader indicated that the reconciliation will be undertaken as part of the 
31/03/2015 annual close down process.   

13



 
 

By the public sector, for the public sector 
 

   
        

Payroll reconciliations to the GL had been undertaken on a monthly basis and signed 
off by an appropriate officer as evidence of review.  
 
VAT - Full Assurance 

We walked through the VAT process in terms of: 

 Expertise and guidance available; 

 VAT returns including secondary checks; 

 VAT control accounts; 

 VAT payments / refunds and VAT reconciliations.  

No weaknesses in the above processes have been identified.  

In addition to the above and as part of the 2014/15 review, we also followed up on 
the implementation of recommendations raised during the 2013/14 review.  We are 
satisfied that all the recommendations raised during our previous review following 
weaknesses identified in this area have been implemented and actioned.  

14



 
 

By the public sector, for the public sector 
 

   
        

Northampton Borough Council (NBC) 
Third Party Assurance – LGSS Payroll 2014/15 
 
The table below provides a breakdown of the levels of assurance given for each of the process 
areas identified, based upon testing of LGSS systems and processes: 
 

Process Area Assurance opinion 
(Please see Appendix 1 for definitions) 

User Access Substantial 

Establishment Controls Substantial 

Standing Data Security Moderate 

Manual Input Controls Full 

Starters and Leavers Full 

Variations Full 

Deductions Full 

Exception Reporting Full 

Payment Run. Full 

Overpayment Detection and Recovery Full 

Overall Level of Assurance Substantial 

 
Where testing and systems reviews have identified areas requiring further improvements 
these have been discussed with LGSS management and suitable actions have been agreed. 
 
Details of findings and assurance opinions 
 
User Access – Substantial Assurance 
There are appropriate processes in place to both create new Payroll users and to delete users 
from the Payroll System including appropriate authorisation and user access responsibility 
levels.  
 
While we were satisfied that on a monthly basis, a Payroll User Access Report is generated by 
Systems and submitted to Payroll, we noted that this report is sent to the Senior Payroll 
Officer’s individual work email address rather than to a generic email payroll address.  There 
is a risk that if that officer is off work, key tasks may not be undertaken or may not be 
undertaken on a timely basis.  
 
With the exception of the issue identified above, this walkthrough has confirmed that the 
controls are operating satisfactorily. 
 
Establishment Controls – Substantial Assurance 
There are appropriate processes in place to create new or amend existing posts including 
appropriate authorisation and a clear audit trail of supporting documentation. Furthermore, 
only designated officers have access to this responsibility on the Payroll System. 
 

15



 
 

By the public sector, for the public sector 
 

   
        

The Establishment is regularly reviewed by Finance and Services as part of monthly budget 
monitoring processes.  
The above notwithstanding, our testing identified the following issues: 
 

 The EC 1Forms used to make amendments to the establishment list, although some 
of the forms were not completed, they were nevertheless still processed. 

 There was no documented process or flowchart detailing tasks required to be 
undertaken when making amendments to the establishment list.  The service officer 
indicated that a ‘step by step process guideline is on the agenda to be undertaken but 
no completion by date has yet been established.  

 
With the exception of the issues identified above, this walkthrough has confirmed that the 
controls are operating satisfactorily. 
 
Standing Data Security – Moderate Assurance 
There is no periodic/routine review of standing data to ensure that it is accurate and to 
maintain data quality.  This increases the risk of errors in payroll payments. 
 
However, there was appropriate control over changing bank details. 
 
Manual Input Controls – Full Assurance 
There was appropriate control over manual input including submission to Payroll on standard 
forms and an authorised signatory listing in place detailing authorising officers who could 
submit these standard forms. 
 
Starters and Leavers – Full Assurance 
There was a mainly robust process in place for adding new starters to the Payroll system 
including the completion of a standard form and appropriate authorisation. A walkthrough 
confirmed that the request form had been submitted by an appropriately authorised officer 
and the start date from this form had then been correctly input into the system. The starter 
had been paid correctly in the first month. 
 
There was a robust process in place for removing leavers from the Payroll system including 
the completion of a standard form and appropriate authorisation. A walkthrough confirmed 
that the form had been completed, appropriately authorised and that the leaving date on the 
form had then been input correctly onto the system. An overpayment had been recovered by 
bank transfer. 
 
The random sample checking of the completeness of input relating to starters and leavers had 
been taking place and is now being transferred to the Payroll and HR Transactions Manager. 
 
Variations – Full Assurance 
There was adequate control over pay variations. Standard forms are completed and must be 
submitted by responsible officers. A walkthrough of a variation confirmed that these controls 
had been complied with.  The increase in hours worked was accurately reflected in the 
payslip. 
 
 

16



 
 

By the public sector, for the public sector 
 

   
        

Deductions – Full Assurance 
There was adequate control over deductions including appropriate authorisation and 
supporting documentation. 
 
Exception Reporting – Full Assurance 
These are produced on a monthly basis and reviewed / signed off at an appropriate level. 
 
Payment Run – Full Assurance 
A payroll checklist is completed and signed by the payroll officer and the payroll reports are 
signed off independently by the Payroll & HR Transactions Service Manager.  There is a 
satisfactory process in place to process BACS runs including full supporting documentation. 
The BACS file is sent to the BACS centre by IT Services and the payroll officer e-mails the 
control totals from the payroll reports to the BACS centre.  If the control totals don’t agree, 
they are queried by the BACS centre.  Third Party payments are reconciled and independently 
signed off by two managers. 
 
Overpayment Detection and Recovery – Full Assurance 
There are currently minimal overpayments. Once identified action is taken promptly to 
recoup/recover overpayments.  Overpayments are now monitored to identify the reasons 
why they happen in order to put preventative actions in place. An aged debt report of 
invoices outstanding is produced monthly.     

17



 
 

By the public sector, for the public sector 
 

   
        

Northampton Borough Council (NBC) 
Third Party Assurance – Bank Reconciliation 2014/15 
 
The table below provides a breakdown of the levels of assurance given for each of the process 
areas identified, based upon testing of LGSS systems and processes: 
 

Process Area Assurance opinion 

(Please see Appendix 1 for definitions) 

Monthly bank reconciliations undertaken Full 

All control account balances are identified.  Control 
account balances are reviewed and cleared on a 
regular basis.  

Full 

Bank reconciliations are accurate and non-reconciled 
items are cleared in a timely manner 

Full 

Overall Level of Assurance Full 

 
Where testing and systems reviews have identified areas requiring further improvements 
these have been discussed with LGSS management and suitable actions have been agreed. 
 
Details of findings and assurance opinions 
 

Monthly bank and control account reconciliations undertaken – Full Assurance 
The following tests were undertaken: 

 Bank reconciliation walkthrough. 

 Selected the January 2015 bank reconciliation statement, ensured that the 
reconciliation statements were signed by the preparer and authorised by a senior 
manager. 

No weaknesses were identified. 
 
All control accounts have been identified and balances reviewed and cleared regularly 
– Full Assurance 
The following tests were undertaken 

 Identified all the control accounts and ensured that balances are reviewed and 
cleared monthly. 

No weaknesses were identified 

 
 
 

18



 
 

By the public sector, for the public sector 
 

   
        

 
Bank reconciliations are accurate and non-reconciled items are cleared in a timely 
manner – Full Assurance 
The following tests were undertaken: 

 On the bank reconciliation statements selected above, ensured that unreconciled 
items are cleared monthly. 

 Ensured that long outstanding cheques (6 months old) are investigated, cleared 
and written back. 

No weaknesses were identified.  
 
 
In addition to the above and as part of the 2014/15 review, we followed up on the 
implementation of recommendations raised during the 2013/14 review.  We are 
satisfied that all the recommendations raised during our previous review in this area, 
have been implemented and actioned. 

19



 
 

By the public sector, for the public sector 
 

   
        

Northampton Borough Council (NBC) 
Third Party Assurance – LGSS Fixed Assets 2014/15 
 
The table below provides a breakdown of the levels of assurance given for each of the process 
areas identified, based upon testing of LGSS systems and processes: 
 

Process Area Assurance opinion 
(Please see Appendix 1 for definitions) 

Depreciation charges accurately reflect the nature of 
assets and depreciation charges are recorded 
accurately 

Full 

Fixed assets codings within the Fixed Asset Register Full 

Reconciliation of the Fixed Asset Register to the 
General Ledger 

Full 

Access to the Real Asset Management System (RAM) 
which contains the Fixed Asset Register 

Full 

Overall Level of Assurance Full 

 
Details of findings and assurance opinions 
 
Depreciation charges accurately reflect the nature of assets and depreciation charges are 
recorded accurately. 
 
New assets are promptly recorded onto the Real Asset Management (RAM) System and 
disposals are removed. 
 
When a new asset is created on the RAM System an asset life is assigned to it against which 
straight line depreciated is then charged through an automatic calculation on the RAM 
System. Testing identified that it is possible to create a new asset with a zero asset life which 
would result in no depreciation being calculated for that asset. It is required to assign zero 
asset lives for assets that are going to be disposed of.  A report is now run on a quarterly basis 
to ensure that new assets are assigned a useful life. 
 
If assets are revalued the Accountancy Team will receive notification of this from Services. 
The asset will then be assigned a ‘relife’ on the RAM System via a journal upload.  There is 
sample testing to check that the ‘relife’ agrees to the notification received from the Service. 
 
There is also sample checking of the system generated depreciation calculations on the RAM 
System and of the postings of these across to the Aggresso General Ledger. 
 
Fixed assets codings within the Fixed Asset 
 
There is a coding structure in place within the RAM and the process had not changed from 
the previous year. 
 
 
 

20



 
 

By the public sector, for the public sector 
 

   
        

 
 
Reconciliation of the Fixed Asset Register to the General Ledger  
 
There is a quarterly reconciliation of the Fixed Asset Register held on the RAM system to the 
Aggresso General Ledger system. This is undertaken by a Senior Assistant Accountant and 
reviewed by the Finance Manager (Capital).  
 
Documentation relating to the Quarter 2 2014/15 Reconciliation was satisfactorily viewed. 
  
Access to the Real Asset Management System (RAM) which contains the Fixed Asset Register  
 
There are adequate controls in place to promptly set up new users on the RAM and also to 
promptly remove users once they have left the Authority or their role within the Authority 
has changed.  
 
Review of the current user list identified that there were two additional users and one leaver, 
compared to the previous year. 

21



 
 

By the public sector, for the public sector 
 

   
        

Northampton Borough Council (NBC) 
Third Party Assurance – LGSS Treasury Management 2014/15 
 
The table below provides a breakdown of the levels of assurance given for each of the process 
areas identified, based upon testing of LGSS systems and processes: 
 

Process Area Assurance opinion 
(Please see Appendix 1 for definitions) 

Strategies & Policy Full 

Guidance and Procedures Full 

Stakeholder Skills & Capacity Full 

Cash Flow Management Full 

Counterparty Management Substantial 

Transactional Processing Full 

Accounting & Reconciliation Moderate 

Reporting & Performance Full 

Overall Level of Assurance Full 

 
Where testing and systems reviews have identified areas requiring further improvements 
these have been discussed with LGSS management and suitable actions have been agreed. 
 
Background to the review  

 

Internal Audit is required as part of the managed audit approach agreed with external audit 
to carry out regular audits of key financial systems.  Treasury Management is one such 
system.  It was last reviewed in 2013/2014 by PWC who gave an assurance level of low risk.  
 
The LGSS Treasury Function is a single team based in Northamptonshire which currently 
provides services to Northamptonshire County Council, Cambridgeshire County Council and 
Northampton Borough Council.  The number of councils serviced by the team may increase as 
LGSS gains more partners or customers. 
 
A review of staff, responsibilities and systems and administrative functions took place in 
2014/2015 and a fully integrated administrative system has now been introduced.   
 
The ultimate aim was that all councils Treasury Activity would be administered using a single 
set of standard process forms and templates etc.  This has also increased resilience within the 
team. 
 
A Cash Wizard has been introduced which reduces the risk of mis-calculation of daily cash 
balances taking place.  Key figures are now typed into the relevant spreadsheets and the 
surplus/deficit balance for the day is calculated thus reducing the risk of error. 
 
An LGSS Inter Authority Lending policy has been developed following findings in last year’s 
audit for NCC and CCC and has been approved by the respective S151 Officers. 

22



 
 

By the public sector, for the public sector 
 

   
        

 
An afternoon post dealing check on balances has also been introduced which now ensures 
there is a review of balances to check if there have been any significant changes to balances 
post dealing and if any additional movements of cash are required.    
 
These key changes to procedures have improved resilience and control and have also 
contributed to efficiencies and the effectiveness of the team. 
 
Approach 

 
Internal Audit’s approach for the completion of this audit was to review the systems for 
Northampton Borough Council transactions, obtaining and documenting an understanding of 
the internal controls in place and to assess the control risk.  
 
In order to test the operating effectiveness of the controls in place we performed sample 
testing as follows: 
 

 Reviewed the approval of the annual Treasury Management Strategy; 

 Reviewed compliance with the CIPFA code of practice for Treasury Management; 

 Reviewed the frequency and content of reports provided to members; 

 Reviewed the staffing compliment in the Treasury Management team, their qualifications 
and training; 

 Reviewed the training provided to members; 

 Reviewed the procedures in place for the selection of organisations to lend to and invest 
with; 

 Tested the procedures in place for a sample of five investments/recalls to confirm that a 
cash calculation had been completed, interest rates had been checked, counter party 
checks had been completed, there was a separation in place between the dealer and 
checker, and that all documentation to evidence the movement of monies was on file;  

 Tested the same transactions to the bank accounts and to the General Ledger; 

 Tested the reconciliations of the treasury management systems (Treasury Live to Agresso) 
to see that these were completed monthly and subject to a management check. 
 

Main conclusions 
 

Based on the completion of our fieldwork and the testing carried out, we are giving 
substantial assurance for the controls in place within LGSS to effectively mitigate the risks 
associated with the Treasury Management process. 
 

 Reconciliations 
 

Following the introduction of Treasury Live it was necessary to develop new systems and 
methods for reconciling the treasury transactions to Agresso and the new system Treasury 
Live.  
 
There were therefore delays in the completion of the monthly reconciliations while these 
systems were developed and refined.  The April, May and June investments and borrowing 
were not reconciled until August and there was no management check in place on this.  Also 

23



 
 

By the public sector, for the public sector 
 

   
        

interest payable and interest receivable had not been reconciled from April until October 
2014. 
 
Improvements had been made in the promptness and checking of reconciliations; from 
November 2014 the reconciliations had been completed each month. 
 

  Counterparty lists 
 
Although investments had been made with approved counterparties evidence had not been 
retained on file to confirm the level of monies held by these pre and post dealing.  This could 
result in unauthorised levels of funds being placed with a counterparty.  A suitable control 
improvement has been agreed.   

 
 

24


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6b LGSS Internal Audit: Assurance Opinions on Key Financial Systems 2014/15

